HISTORY OF THE ROYAL NETHERLANDS AIR FORCE

After several trials with airplanes for military use, the Aviation Department of the Dutch Army (Luchtvaartafdeeling, LVA) was founded on July 1st, 1913.

The first airplane, the “Brik” of Marinus van Meel was rented at first and bought later. It was used to let the early pilots gain flying proficiency.

Later in 1913 three Farman F-20’s were bought, followed by 16 Farman F-22’s in 1914, just before the outbreak of the Great War. The last of the Farmans was actually smuggled out of Belgium under gunfire!

As Holland remained neutral during WWI it was not possible to buy airplanes abroad, but many planes strayed into Dutch airspace, either intentionally or not, and were interned.

In total 107 planes of a great variety were used by the Luchtvaartafdeeling during the war years. The advantage was that the Dutch mechanics acquired tremendous technical knowledge.

After the war, Fokker, the airplane designer and builder, returned from Germany with many first line airplanes, which were taken over by the LVA.

Fokker produced most of the airplanes for the LVA until the outbreak of the Second World War.

When the Germans invaded Holland on May 10, 1940, the LVA was no match for the modern Luftwaffe. It only had a few, mostly outdated bombers, fighters and reconnaissance aircraft, but, with the assistance of a very effective anti-aircraft defence, thev Dutch managed to put a great many Luftwaffe planes out of action. The exact number of aircraft downed is not yet certain, but lies between 400 and 500! Especially the loss of at least 280 Junckers Ju-52’s was a severe blow to the Luftwaffe transport capability from which they never recovered during the entire war. For instance, it made the invasion of Great Britain impossible.

After the Luftwaffe bombed the densely populated city center of Rotterdam the Dutch were forced to surrender. Queen Wilhelmina awarded the LVA the Military Order of William for their heroic fighting.

Many aircrew managed to escape to England via France, not only just after the surrender, but some also during the occupation, to fight again, many as aircrew.

In Great Britain the first Dutch squadron (320 Royal Netherlands Naval Air Service) was formed in August 1940, soon followed by the second (321). They mainly consisted of Dutch Naval aircrew.

Later in the war Dutch aircrew were trained in the US, Canada and Australia and these strengthened the existing two Dutch squadrons and the newly formed 322 Spitfire squadron. Almost a thousand Dutch aircrew served in the 3 Dutch squadrons and many (96!) other RAF and FAA squadrons.

After the war the Dutch air arm, now called Luchtstrijdkrachten (LSK) reformed with the emphasis on pilot traing, so during the first few years most planes were trainers and transports with the exception of one Spitfire squadron (322).

The first jet planes were Gloster Meteor Mk 4’s for 322 Squadron, acquired in 1948 for air defence. Several more squadrons were formed (323 through 328), all with Meteors.

The Air Force became independent from the Army, received the prefix “Royal” and thus was named Koninklijke Luchtmacht (Royal Air Force).

In 1951 the Meteor Mk 8 started to replace the older types. In the same year the Tactical Air Force was founded and 2 new squadrons were formed  (311 and 312), equipped with Republic F-84F Thunderjets. Later the squadrons 313, 314, 315 and 316 were added and one (306 Squadron) was dedicated to photo-reconnaissance.

In 1955 the Meteors started to be replaced by the Hawker Hunter Mk 4 and later the Mk 6. For all-weather fighter the North American F-86K Sabre was chosen and placed in the squadrons 700, 701 and 702.

The Thunderjets were replaced from 1956 by F-84F Thunderstreaks and for 306 Squadron the RF-84F Thunderflash.

In December 1962 the first two Lockheed F-104G Starfighters arrived for technical evaluation. 306 Squadron received its RF-104G’s in September 1963. The all-weather squadrons were disbanded.

323 and 322 Squadrons received the F-104G in 1964, 311 Squadron in 1965 and 312 Squadron in 1966.

The other squadrons of the Tactical Air Force ( 313, 314, 315 and 316) were equipped with Northrop NF-5A’s, starting in 1970.

From 1980 the F-104G’s were replaced by the General Dynamics F-16A and this type also replaced the NF-5A’s in the mid-eighties.

Other tasks in the Air Force were transport and army cooperation.

Transport: 334 Squadron, at first with C-47 Dakotas, De Havilland Dominies and a few De Havilland Beavers, operated Fokker F-27 Troopships from 1960.

The Troopships served a long time. They were replaced by a variety of types to fulfill the various duties of 334 Squadron in the mid-nineties;

2 Lockheed C-130H Hercules

2 Douglas KDC-10

2 Fokker F-50

4 Fokker F-60

1 Grumman Gulfstream IV

Army cooperation:

After 1945 first equipped with Austers and Piper Super Cubs, then the Group Light Aircraft was renamed Group Helicopters when the helicopters such as the Sud Aviation Alouette II (later Alouette III) and the Bölkow Bo-105 replaced the obsolete planes.

The rôle of the helicopters became more significant when the Cougar was introduced, followed by an even bigger one, the Chinook, later supplemented by the attack helicopter, the Apache.

Also the Air Force performed maritime patrol duties in the Carribean taking this task over from the Navy Neptunes. For this purpose Squadron 336 was reinstated in 1981 and based at Hato, Curacao, operating two Fokker F-27 Maritime aircraft. On 17th November 1981 the first flight was made, patrols started in 1982  and ended on 6th July 2000 when the squadron was disbanded.

